
 

AGENDA 

 
 



 

1 

 

 CITY OF HOPEWELL 
Hopewell, Virginia 23860 

 

CITY COUNCIL 
Jackie M. Shornak, Mayor, Ward #7 

Jasmine E. Gore, Vice Mayor, Ward #4 
Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Councilor, Ward #1 

Arlene Holloway, Councilor, Ward #2 
Anthony J. Zevgolis, Councilor, Ward #3 

Janice Denton, Councilor, Ward #5 
Brenda S. Pelham, Councilor, Ward #6 

 
John M. Altman, Jr., City Manager 

Stefan M. Calos, City Attorney 
Ronnieye L. Arrington, City Clerk 

 

AGENDA 
 

PHONE: 541-2249 
FAX: 541-2248 

 

e-mail: info@hopewellva.gov 
www.hopewellva.gov 

rarrington@hopewellva.gov 

 Date: October 9, 2018 
2018 

MUNICIPAL BUILDING Closed Meeting:  6:00 p.m. 
Regular Meeting: 7:30 p.m. 

 

OPEN MEETING 

 

6:00 p.m. Call to order, roll call, and welcome to visitors 

 

PROPOSED MOTION: To go into closed meeting for (1) discussion and consideration 

of specific appointees of city council (City Attorney) and (2) consultation with legal 

counsel employed or retained by city council related thereto and regarding specific legal 

matters requiring the provision of legal advice by such counsel, in accordance with 

Virginia Code § 2.2-3711 (A) (1) and (8), respectively. 

 

 Roll Call  

CLOSED MEETING 

 

RECONVENE OPEN MEETING 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO VIRGINIA CODE § 2.2-3712 (D): Were only public business 

matters (1) lawfully exempted from open-meeting requirements and (2) identified in the closed-

meeting motion discussed in closed meeting? 

 

Roll Call 

 

PROPOSED MOTION: To amend/adopt agenda 

 

Roll Call 

REGULAR MEETING 

 

7:30 p.m.   Call to order, roll call, and welcome to visitors 

 

Prayer by Rev. Leroy Mashore of John Randolph Pastoral Care, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance 

to the Flag of the United States of America led by Councilor Denton. 
  

mailto:info@hopewellva.gov
http://www.hopewellva.gov/


 

2 

 

Consent Agenda 
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine by Council and will be approved 

or received by one motion in the form listed. Items may be removed from the Consent Agenda for 

discussion under the regular agenda at the request of any Councilor. 

 

C-1 Minutes:  September 25, 2018 

C-2 Pending List:   

C-3 Routine Approval of Work Sessions:  

C-4 Personnel Change Report & Financial Report:  Finance Report attached 

C-5 Ordinances on Second & Final Reading:   

C-6 Routine Grant Approval: Aaron Reidmiller, Director of Parks and Recreation - $20,000 

Grant from Virginia Department of Health for Thrive 450 Unit 

C-7 Public Hearing Announcement:  

C-8 Information for Council Review: ARB minutes: 4/23/18, 6/25/18, 7/23/18, 8/27/18 

C-9 Resolutions/Proclamations/Presentations:   

C-10 Additional Announcements: Awards: Go Green; Healthy Eating Active Living (HEAL) 

 

Public Hearings 

CITY CLERK: All persons addressing Council shall approach the microphone, give name and, if 

they reside in Hopewell, their ward number, and limit comments to five minutes. No person shall be 

permitted to address Council a second time until all others have been heard, and no one may speak 

more than twice on any subject in any one meeting. All remarks shall be addressed to Council as a 

body, any questions must be asked through the mayor only, and there shall be no discussion without 

permission of the mayor. Any person who makes personal, impertinent, abusive, or slanderous 

statements, or incites disorderly conduct in Council Chambers may be barred by the mayor from 

further audience before Council, and removed, subject to appeal to a majority of Council. (See Rules 

405 and 406) 

 

None 

Communications from Citizens 

CITY CLERK: A Communications from Citizens period, limited in total time to 30 minutes, is part of 

the Order of Business at each regular Council meeting. All persons addressing Council shall approach 

the microphone, give name and, if they reside in Hopewell, their ward number, and limit comments to 

three minutes. No one is permitted to speak on any item scheduled for consideration on the regular 

agenda of the meeting. All remarks shall be addressed to Council as a body, any questions must be 

asked through the mayor only, and there shall be no discussion without permission of the mayor. Any 

person who makes personal, impertinent, abusive, or slanderous statements, or incites disorderly 

conduct in Council Chambers, may be barred by the mayor from further audience before Council, and 

removed, subject to appeal to a majority of Council. (See Rules 405 and 406.) 

 

Regular Business 

Reports of City Manager: 

 

R-1 Designation of Fall Clean Up Week 

ISSUE:  Fall Clean-Up Week is a Hopewell tradition that affords residents the opportunity to 

clean around their neighborhood and dispose of unwanted belongings to the Hopewell 

Convenience Center free of charge. Staff is requesting that Council approve and designate the 

week of Saturday, October 20, 2018 to Saturday, October 27, 2018 as Fall Clean-Up Week. 



 

3 

 

 

MOTION:            

 

             

 Roll Call 

 

R-2 Change Order to Expand and Modify the Design of the New Fire Station  

 

ISSUE:  The proposed change order for design modifications to the new fire station will 

increase the “fixed-price” contract by more than 25%, which requires approval of the governing 

body under Virginia Code § 2.2-4309 (Modification of the contract). Staff is requesting that 

Council authorize the City Manager to execute a Change Order in the amount of $190,000 with 

RRMM Architects. 

 

MOTION:            

 

             

 Roll Call 

 

 

Reports of the City Attorney:   City Council rules 

 

Reports of the City Clerk: Boards, Committees, Commissions & Authorities: 
 

Name of Board, Committee, etc. Vacancies TBR’s 

Ashford Civic Plaza Commission 9 2 

Architectural Review Board (as of 10-31-18) 1 0 

Board of Building Code and Fire Prevention Code Appeals 5 1 

Board of Zoning Appeals 2 0 

Board of Equalization 4 1 

District 19 Community Services Board 1 0 

Dock Commission 5 1 

Economic Development Authority (as of 10/31/18) 2 1 

Historic Preservation Committee 11 0 

HRHA (as of 10/31/18) 1 1 

Keep Hopewell Beautiful 5 0 

Library Board  (as of 10/31/18) 2 0 

Planning Commission 1 0 

Youth Services Commission 8 4 

Recreation Commission 3 1 

Social Services Advisory Board 5 0 

Transportation Safety Board 3 0 

Technology Fund Committee 1 0 

 
 

Reports of City Council: 

 

 Committees  



 

4 

 

 

 Individual Councilors   
 

Citizen/Councilor Requests 

 

 CCR-1- Shornak – Waiver for Veterans on Personal Property Tax 

 

Other Council Communications 

Adjournment 



 
REGULAR 
MEETING 

 



 

CONSENT 
AGENDA 

 



 
MINUTES 



MINUTES OF THE SEPTEMBER 25, 2018 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

 A meeting of the Hopewell City Council was held Tuesday, September 25, 2018, at 6:30 p.m. in 

the City Council Chambers, Municipal Building, 300 North Main Street, Hopewell, Virginia. 

 

  PRESENT:  Jackie Shornak, Mayor 

     Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Councilor 

     Arlene Holloway, Councilor 

     Anthony J. Zevgolis, Councilor 

     Janice B. Denton, Councilor  

     Brenda S. Pelham, Councilor  

 

     John M. Altman, Jr., City Manager 

     Charles Dane, Assistant City Manager 

     Stefan M. Calos of Sands Anderson PC, City Attorney 

     Ronnieye L. Arrington, City Clerk 

     Frazelle Hampton, Assistant City Clerk 

 

  ABSENT:  Jasmine E. Gore, Vice Mayor 

      

ROLL CALL 
 

 Mayor Shornak opened the meeting at 6:30 p.m. Roll call was taken as follows: 

 

    Mayor Shornak   - present 

    Vice Mayor Gore  - absent 

    Councilor Luman-Bailey - present 

    Councilor Holloway  - present 

    Councilor Zevgolis  - present 

    Councilor Denton  - present 

    Councilor Pelham  - present 

 

CLOSED MEETING 

 

At 6:32 p.m., Councilor Pelham moved to go into closed meeting for (1) discussion and consideration 

of specific appointees of city council (City Attorney); (2) discussion and consideration of the investment of 

public funds where competition or bargaining is involved, where, if made public initially, the financial 

interest of the city would be adversely affected (Francisco Landing); (3) discussion or consideration of the 

acquisition of real property for a public purpose, and of the disposition of publicly held real property, where 

discussion in an open meeting would adversely affect the bargaining position or negotiating strategy of the 

public body (CFB building, old City Jail); (4) consultation with legal counsel pertaining to actual or 

probable litigation, where such consultation or briefing in open meeting would adversely affect the 

negotiating or litigating posture of city council (police, cemetery); and (5) consultation with legal counsel 

employed or retained by city council related thereto and regarding specific legal matters requiring the 

provision of legal advice by such counsel, in accordance with Virginia Code § 2.2-3711 (A) (1), (3), (6), 

(7), and (8), respectively. The motion was seconded by Councilor Zevgolis. Upon the roll call, the vote 

resulted: 

 

   Councilor Denton  - Yes 

   Councilor Pelham  - Yes 

   Mayor Shornak   - Yes 



DRAFT 

September 25, 2018 

Regular Meeting 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

2 
 

   Councilor Luman-Bailey - Yes 

   Councilor Holloway  - Yes 

   Councilor Zevgolis  - Yes 

 

Motion passed 6-0 

 

RECONVENE OPEN MEETING 

 

Council convened into open meeting at 7:31 p.m., and responded to the question pursuant to 

Virginia Code § 2.2-3712 (D): were only public business matters (I) lawfully exempted from open-

meeting requirements and (II) identified in the closed-meeting motion discussed in closed meeting? Upon 

the roll call, the vote resulted: 

 

   Councilor Denton  - Yes 

   Councilor Pelham  - Yes 

   Mayor Shornak   - Yes 

   Councilor Luman-Bailey - Yes 

   Councilor Holloway  - Yes 

   Councilor Zevgolis  - Yes 

 

Council agreed 6-0 

 

AMEND/ADOPT AGENDA 

 

 Councilor Pelham made a motion to amend the agenda to remove item R-4 (Appointment of City 

Attorney), and to approve the agenda as amended, which motion was seconded by Councilor Denton.  

Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 

   

   Councilor Denton  - Yes 

   Councilor Pelham  - Yes 

   Mayor Shornak   - Yes 

   Councilor Luman-Bailey - Yes 

   Councilor Holloway  - Yes 

   Councilor Zevgolis  - Yes 

 

Motion passed 6-0 

 

Mayor Shornak requested a roll call, the result of which was: 

 

   Mayor Shornak   - present 

   Vice Mayor Gore  - absent 

   Councilor Luman-Bailey - present 

   Councilor Holloway  - absent 

   Councilor Zevgolis  - present 

   Councilor Denton  - present 

   Councilor Pelham  - present 

 



DRAFT 

September 25, 2018 

Regular Meeting 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

3 
 

PRAYER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG OF THE UNITED STATES OF   

AMERICA 
 

Mayor Shornak called the meeting to order, and thanked all for attending.  The prayer was led by 

Rev. J. Jefferson Butler of the John Randolph Pastoral Care, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the 

Flag of the United States of America, led by Councilor Pelham. 

 

Consent Agenda 
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine by Council and will be approved or 

received by one motion in the form listed. Items may be removed from the Consent Agenda for discussion 

under the regular agenda at the request of any Councilor. 

 

C-1 Minutes:   

C-2 Pending List:  Attached 

C-3 Routine Approval of Work Sessions:  

C-4 Personnel Change Report & Financial Report:  Personnel report attached 

C-5 Ordinances on Second & Final Reading:   

C-6 Routine Grant Approval:  

C-7 Public Hearing Announcement:  

C-8 Information for Council Review: Minutes: ARLS – 9-18-18; CPMT – 8-20-18; HRHA – 7-09-

18; Investment Committee – 6-26-18; Planning Commission – 8-02-18 

C-9 Resolutions/Proclamations/Presentations:  Recognition to John Randolph Medical Center, 

Vulcan Materials Corporation, and Dominion Fireworks for assistance with fireworks at the 

Appomattox event 

C-10 Additional Announcements: Riverwalk Groundbreaking Ceremony 

 

 

Aaron Reidmiller, Director of Parks and Recreation recognized John Randolph, Vulcan Materials, and 

Dominion Fireworks for their assistance with Fireworks over the Appomattox. He also announced the 

Riverwalk Groundbreaking Ceremony. Councilor Denton made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda, 

which was seconded by Vice Mayor Gore. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 

 

   Councilor Denton  - Yes 

   Councilor Pelham  - Yes 

   Mayor Shornak   - Yes 

   Councilor Luman-Bailey - Yes 

   Councilor Holloway  - Yes 

   Councilor Zevgolis  - Yes 

 

Motion passed 6-0 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

PH-1 Rezoning Request – Appomattox Street, Lots 1 & 2, Copeland Subdivision and 

Lots 1, 2 and 3, Block 16, B Village Subdivision – Tevya Griffin, Director of Development 

provided Council with a condensed version of the Staff Report for the rezoning request. Mayor 

Shornak opened the public hearing. Deb Randolph spoke on behalf of the EDA, and stated that 

EDA members approved of the project. She also said that as a resident of Ward 1, she had 



DRAFT 

September 25, 2018 

Regular Meeting 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

4 
 

parking concerns but was sure that her concerns would be addressed. Former Councilor Wayne 

Walton also spoke in favor of the project. Katherine Podlewski spoke in opposition to the 

project. Michael Ernst said he was not opposed to the project, but did have parking concerns. 

Council asked questions and had further discussion. Mayor Shornak closed the public hearing. 

Councilor Denton moved to approve the rezoning request for Appomattox Streets, Lots 1 & 2, 

Copeland Subdivision, and Lots 1, 2, and 3, Block 16, B Village subdivision.  The motion was 

seconded by Councilor Zevgolis. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 

 

   Councilor Denton  - Yes 

   Councilor Pelham  - Yes 

   Mayor Shornak   - Yes 

   Councilor Luman-Bailey - Yes 

   Councilor Holloway  - Yes 

   Councilor Zevgolis  - Yes 

 

Motion passed 6-0 

 

PH-2 Sale of City Property - Appomattox Street, Lots 1 & 2, Copeland Subdivision and 

Lots 1, 2 and 3, Block 16, B Village Subdivision –Assistant City Manager Charles Dane gave 

Council information and background on the Francisco Landing Holdings LLC project. He 

advised Council that Staff was not seeking approval of the sale at this time. Chip and Ed 

Bowman, the proponents of the project, came forward and presented information and history to 

Council, including the fact that they are the great-great grandsons of Peter Francisco. Mayor 

Shornak opened the public hearing. Kathleen Podlewski spoke in opposition to the project. Eliot 

Eliades spoke in favor of the project. He acknowledged the parking concerns, but said he had no 

doubt the concerns would be addressed and solved. Mayor Shornak closed the public hearing.  

No action requested of Council. 
 

Councilor Luman-Bailey submitted a Transactional Disclosures Statement stating that she is an adjacent 

property owner. 

 

COMMUNICATION FROM CITIZENS 

 Mayor Shornak asked if any citizen wished to speak, but no one came forward.  

 

REGULAR BUSINESS 

 

Reports of City Manager: 

 

R-1 Request to vacate portion of Western Street and Old Woodlawn Avenue – Director of 

Development Tevya Griffin came before Council requesting the vacation of a portion of Western 

Street and Old Woodlawn Avenue. Derek Johnson of Timmons Group spoke to Council on behalf 

of Amin Land Holdings LLC regarding the proposed project. After discussion, Councilor 

Zevgolis moved to vacate the undeveloped portion of Western Street and Old Woodlawn Avenue. 

His motion was seconded by Councilor Denton.  Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 

   Councilor Denton  - Yes 

   Councilor Pelham  - Yes 

   Mayor Shornak   - Yes 



DRAFT 

September 25, 2018 

Regular Meeting 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

5 
 

   Councilor Luman-Bailey - Yes 

   Councilor Holloway  - Yes 

   Councilor Zevgolis  - Yes 

 

Motion passed 6-0 

 

Councilor Denton submitted a Transactional Disclosure Statement stating that she was a Realtor with 

Ingram & Associates. 

 

Mayor Shornak submitted a Transactional Disclosure Statement stating a familial relationship with Riley 

Ingram. 

 

R-2 City of Refuge Funding Request – Charles Dane presented information to Council regarding the 

City of Refuge’s request. He explained that the program had been in operation for 11 months, and 

that there had already been 9 diversions from the court system to the program. Mr. Dane said that 

each diversion saves the City $44/day. Rev. Collier, who heads the program, also spoke to 

Council about the extensive benefits of the program. Rick Newman, the Commonwealth 

Attorney, added his voice in support of the program. There was discussion regarding whether 

other entities would make donations as well. The City Manager spoke in support of the program 

and answered questions regarding from where the funds would be taken (Unallocated Funds). 

Councilor Zevgolis noted there may be an issue with Council making an allocation due to its 

being one member short. Councilor Luman-Bailey moved to allocate the requested $50,000 for 

this year only from Fund Balance to the General Fund to the City of Refuge program, pending 

verification of the legality of the vote. The motion was seconded by Councilor Holloway. Mr. 

Calos located the relevant law (Va. Code §15.2-1428, Procedures for certain acts) and opined 

that there was no problem with Council making this allocation absent a member, as the 

affirmative votes of only 4 councilors were required. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 

 
   Councilor Denton  - Yes 

   Councilor Pelham  - abstain* 

   Mayor Shornak   - Yes 

   Councilor Luman-Bailey - Yes 

   Councilor Holloway  - Yes 

   Councilor Zevgolis  - Yes 

 

Motion passed 5-0 

 

* Mr. Calos explained that Councilor Pelham was excused from voting because she was a 

member of the City of Refuge board. 

 

Councilor Pelham submitted a Transactional Disclosure Statement stating that she is a member of the City 

of Refuge Board and a Trustee. 

 

Mayor Shornak submitted a Transactional Disclosure Statement stating that she is a past member of the 

City of Refuge Board. 

  



DRAFT 

September 25, 2018 

Regular Meeting 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

6 
 

 
R-3 Request to appropriate funding for the Hopewell Riverwalk project – Mr. Reidmiller advised 

Council of the funding from the Virginia General Assembly ($100,000) and the donation from Friends of 

the Lower Appomattox River (FOLAR) ($40,680), and asked that Council approve the appropriation of 

the $140,680 to the Riverwalk project. Councilor Luman-Bailey moved to approve the appropriation of 

the $140,680 already received for the Riverwalk project. The motion was seconded by Councilor 

Holloway. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 

 

   Councilor Denton  - Yes 

   Councilor Pelham  - Yes 

   Mayor Shornak   - Yes 

   Councilor Luman-Bailey - Yes 

   Councilor Holloway  - Yes 

   Councilor Zevgolis  - Yes 

 

Motion passed 6-0 

 

 
Reports of City Attorney – Mr. Calos discussed the revisions to Council’s Rules. Council opted to 

decide on the approval of the Rules at the next meeting when all Council members could be present. 

 

Reports of City Clerk – Nothing to report.  

 

Reports of City Council. 

 

Individual Councilors  
 

 Luman-Bailey – Thanked all for attending the Ward 1 meeting. She also discussed the 

proposed development on the Copeland Site. Councilor Luman-Bailey said she was looking 

forward to going to the October VML meeting as Hopewell had done well in the Go Green 

Challenge. 

 

 Pelham – Thanked Council for supporting the City of Refuge request for funding. She 

noted that through the Court diversions, the City saves more money than was being given 

to the City of Refuge.  Councilor Pelham also encouraged citizens to attend the September 

27, 2018 Ward Meeting being held at the Elks Lodge. 

 

 Zevgolis – Noted that he had already had his Ward meeting at which they discussed the 

proposed balanced school year. He stated that his constituents had voiced some concerns, 

which he shared. He recommended a voter referendum to address this issue.  He also said 

he had some Charter changes to suggest. 

 

Citizen Councilor Requests 
  



DRAFT 

September 25, 2018 

Regular Meeting 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

7 
 

 

ADJOURN 
 

 At 9:51 p.m. motion was made by Councilor Denton and seconded by Councilor Luman-Bailey to 

adjourn.  All council responded “aye” to the question, with the exception of Councilor Pelham, who said 

“no”. 

 

 

       

      /s/ Jackie Shornak    

       Jackie Shornak, Mayor 

 

 

/s/ Ronnieye L. Arrington  

Ronnieye L. Arrington, City Clerk  

       



 

FINANCIAL 
REPORT 

 























 

ROUTINE 
GRANT 

APPROVAL 

























  

INFORMATION 
FOR COUNCIL 

REVIEW 
 





























PUBLIC 
HEARINGS 

There are no Public Hearings



 COMMUNICATIONS 
     FROM CITIZENS 



REGULAR 
BUSINESS 



 
R-1 

 
 



SUMMARY: 
Y N  Y N  
□ □ Councilor Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor K. Wayne Walton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2  □ □ Councilor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor Anthony J. Zevgolis, Ward #3   □ □ Mayor Jackie M. Shornak, Ward #7 
□ □ Vice Mayor Jasmine E. Gore, Ward #4 

CITY OF HOPEWELL  
CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 
Civic Engagement 
Culture & Recreation  
Economic Development 
Education 
Housing 
Safe & Healthy Environment 
None (Does not apply) 

Order of Business: 
Consent Agenda 
Public Hearing 
Presentation-Boards/Commissions 
Unfinished Business 
Citizen/Councilor Request      
Regular Business 
Reports of Council Committees 

Action: 
Approve and File  
Take Appropriate Action  
Receive & File (no motion required) 
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 
Set a Public Hearing       
Approve on Emergency Measure 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  Designate Fall Clean Up Week 

ISSUE:  To have City Council approve and designate the week of Saturday, October 20, 2017 to 
Saturday, October 27, 2017 as Fall Clean-Up Week. 

RECOMMENDATION:  The City Administration recommends that City Council resolve to approve 
Saturday, October 20, 2018 to Saturday, October 27, 2018 as Fall Clean-Up Week.Fa 

TIMING:   City Council action is requested on October 9, 2018. 

BACKGROUND: Fall Clean- Up Week is a Hopewell tradition that affords residents the opportunity to 
clean around their neighborhood and dispose of unwanted belongings to the Hopewell Convenience 
Center free of charge. See attached flyer for exceptions 

FISCAL IMPACT:   

ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:   Fall Clean Up Week Flyer  

STAFF:   Tevya W. Griffin, Director, Department of Development 



City of Hopewell 
               

 

SATURDAY, OCTOBER 20 - SATURDAY, OCTOBER 27, 2018 
 

Keep Hopewell Beautiful in partnership with the Hopewell Public Works Department 

has scheduled Fall Citywide Clean-up from Saturday, October 20, to Saturday, October 

27, 2018. 

 

Hours of operation during “Fall Clean-Up” at the Citizen Convenience Center are 12:30 

p.m. to 6:00 p.m. Monday-Friday, and Saturday from 8:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.  Citizens 

are encouraged to participate in this effort by cleaning around their homes and along 

their streets.  During this week, Hopewell residents may dispose of trash at no charge at 

the Citizen Convenience Center located at 507 Station Street, behind Fire Station #1. 

There will be the usual $10.25 fee for the removal of freon to dispose of appliances. 

 

The following items will not be accepted at the Citizen Convenience Center:  concrete, 

masonry, garbage (items normally disposed of in your trash toter), paint of any kind, 

atteries, automobile motors, and hazardous waste materials.  Tires are limited to four (4) 

per citizen, and they must be separated from the rim.  There can be no more than eight 

(8) tires per household. 

 

Firestone Tire located in the Cavalier Square Shopping Center is partnering with the 

City and will also accept up to four (4) tires per person and batteries (no limit) during 

Fall Clean-Up Week.   

 

Remember, “Fall Clean-Up” activities apply to Hopewell residents only. 

Help make your neighborhood and city clean. 

         

         

Register your clean up event 

on the Keep Hopewell 

Beautiful Facebook Page. 

Take pictures of the event and 

upload.  



 
R-2 

 
 



Council action form  1-3-17        
SUMMARY: 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Councilor Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda S. Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor Tony Zevgolis, Ward #3    □ □ Mayor Jackie M. Shornak, Ward #7 
□ □ Vice Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 
 

       
  

10-9-2018 
R- 

 
CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 
 

 
Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 
Culture & Recreation  
Economic Development 
Education 
Housing 

 Safe & Healthy Environment  
 None (Does not apply) 

 
Order of Business: 

Consent Agenda    
Public Hearing          
Presentation-Boards/Commissions  
Unfinished Business            
Citizen/Councilor Request      

 Regular Business 
Reports of Council Committees  

 

 
Action: 
 Approve and File  

Take Appropriate Action  
Receive & File (no motion required) 
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 
Set a Public Hearing       
Approve on Emergency Measure  

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:   Change Order to Expand and Modify the Design of the New 
Fire Station  
 
ISSUE:  In accordance with §2.2-4309 of the Code of Virginia the proposed change order for design 
modifications to the new fire station will increase the “fixed-price” contract by more than 25% the amount 
of the contract which requires approval of the governing body. 
    
RECOMMENDATION: City Staff recommends that Council authorize the City Manager to execute a 
Change Order in the amount of $190,000 with RRMM Architects.   
 
TIMING:   This approval needs to be made as soon as possible to provide enable the project to be 
advertised for bid by next spring. 
 
BACKGROUND:   Over the past two years since the completion of the fire station design, the 
restructuring of the ambulance service between the Hopewell Volunteer Emergency Crew and Hopewell 
Fire Department has caused is a need to review the design and expand the capacity of the new fire station.  
Given the questions raised regarding the design of the Police Station, the City Manager requested the Fire 
Chief to review the design for the fire station to insure that needs of the department were being meet not 
only today but into the future.  This will be only time in the 30-40 years that the City will be a new fire 
station, it is in the City’s best interest to be assured that we have a station that will serve the departments 
needs.  As a result of the review, the proposed improvements that will be addressed with this change order 
include: 

• Add approximately 1400 square feet of floor space to provide 6 additional bunk rooms, a larger 
laundry room, and conference room 

• Adjust walls for more I.T. room square footage to accommodate offsite disaster recovery storage 
• Modify the design of the dispatch room to a room from one person to one that is similar to the 

dispatch room in the new police station.  (3 additional dispatch workstations) 
• Extend equipment pad for parking apron 
• Install traffic light in front of fire station 

 

 



Council action form  1-3-17        
SUMMARY: 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Councilor Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda S. Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor Tony Zevgolis, Ward #3    □ □ Mayor Jackie M. Shornak, Ward #7 
□ □ Vice Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 
 

       
  

10-9-2018 
R- 

FISCAL IMPACT:   $190,000 change order will reduce the $380,000 of uncommitted fund balance 
remaining in the original $7.7 million of funding for the Public Safety Building to $190,000.   
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:   
 
STAFF:    Donald Hunter, Fire Chief  

Edward Watson, Director of Public Works    



 

 

REPORTS  
OF THE 

CITY 
ATTORNEY 

 

 



 

1 
 

HOPEWELL CITY COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE 

These rules are authorized by the Hopewell Charter, Chapter IV, Section 4  

 

CONDUCT OF MEETINGS— 

ROLES OF PRESIDING OFFICER, CITY CLERK, AND CITY ATTORNEY 

 

101. Robert’s Rules of Order; Parliamentarian; Presiding Officer – Where these rules 

are silent, Robert’s Rules of Order prevails (Charter IV.4). The city attorney is 

parliamentarian, whose ruling, when requested by or through the presiding officer, is 

final and binding, subject only to appeal to and a two-thirds vote of all council members.  

The presiding officer is the council president (mayor) or, in the mayor's absence, the 

vice-president (vice mayor) (Charter IV.5). If the mayor and vice mayor are absent, the 

temporary chairman (see Rule 103) is the presiding officer. 

 
[Approved 6.26.18 (this and other rules are to be adopted once all rules are approved)] 

 

102. 

 

 

 

 

Roll Call; Quorum – The presiding officer takes the chair at the appointed meeting 

hour, and immediately calls council to order. The clerk then calls the roll, and enters in 

the meeting minutes the names of the councilors as preset or absent. In the absence of a 

quorum, the clerk attempts to procure the attendance of absent councilors. A quorum 

exists when a majority of all councilors is present (Charter IV.4). 

103. Temporary Chairman – In the absence of the mayor and vice mayor, the clerk calls 

council to order, and calls the roll. If a quorum exists, council elects by majority vote of 

those present one of its members to be temporary chairman until the mayor or vice 

mayor appears. 

 

104. 

 

Appeals – See Rule 101. 

106. Presiding Officer's Designee – The presiding officer may designate another councilor   

to preside for a single issue. If the mayor is the presiding officer, the vice mayor is 

designated. If the vice mayor is unavailable, the presiding officer may designate any 

other councilor. 

 

204. Voting Order – Roll call for voting is by ward number. At the first meeting in January, the 

roll call starts with the Ward 1 councilor, and proceeds numerically, through the Ward 7 

councilor.  At each meeting thereafter, the roll call is rotated by beginning with the Ward 2 

councilor at the second meeting, and so on until each councilor has voted first.  Once all 

councilors have voted first, the process repeats.  

 
[Except as otherwise indicated, the above were approved 9.11.18; those not included have not been approved] 



1 
 

Current . . . 

 

105. Voting – All questions shall be stated and put by the Chair. All votes concerning the 

approval of any Ordinance or Resolution shall be by roll call by the Clerk, followed by 

immediate statement of result. All other votes may be taken by “ayes” and “nays,” or by 

roll call, at the discretion of the Chair. It shall not be in order for members to explain 

their vote during the call of the roll. Silence shall be recorded as an affirmative vote. 

 

Proposed changes (as redlined as of 6/26/18 meeting) . . . 

  

105. Voting – All questions shall be stated and put by the Chair. All votes concerning the 

approval of any OrdinanceMethods – Votes upon a motion to adopt an ordinance or 

Resolution shall beresolution are by roll call by the Clerk, followed by immediate 

statement of result..  All other votes may be takenare by “ayes” and “nays,” or by” 

(Charter IV.8), unless the presiding officer requests a roll call, at the discretion of the 

Chair. It shall not be in order for members to explain their vote during the call of the 

roll. Silence shall be recorded as an affirmative vote. 

  

Proposed changes (redlined per comments at 6/26/18 meeting) . . . 

 

105. Voting Methods – Votes upon a motion to adopt an ordinance or resolution are by roll 

call.  All other votes are recorded by “ayes” and “nays” (Charter IV.8), unless the 

presiding officer requests a roll call. No councilor is excused from voting except on 

items that consider the councilor's official conduct, or involve the councilor's financial 

or personal interests (Charter IV.8).  Although one cannot be compelled to vote 

(Robert's Rules), a councilor who abstains or otherwise fails to vote without having been 

excused under this rule or Rule 209 may be disciplined (Charter IV.4; Va. Code § 2.2-

3711). 

  

Proposed changes (redlined per comments at 9/11/18 meeting) . . . 

 

105. Voting Methods – Votes upon a motion to adopt an ordinance or resolution are by roll 

call.  All other votes are recorded by “ayes” and “nays” (Charter IV.8), unless the 

presiding officer requests a roll call. No councilor is excused from voting except on 

items that consider the councilor's official conduct, or involve the councilor's financial 

or personal interests (Charter IV.8).  Although one cannot be compelled to vote 

(Robert's Rules), a councilor (a) who abstains or otherwiseis present but fails to vote 

without having been excused under this rule, or (b) who, in violation of Rule 209, 

excused himself or herself from the meeting to avoid voting, may be disciplined 

(Charter IV.4; Va. Code § 2.2-3711). 

 

Proposed changes (clean) . . . 

 

105. Voting Methods – Votes upon a motion to adopt an ordinance or resolution are by roll 

call. All other votes are recorded by “ayes” and “nays” (Charter IV.8), unless the 
 



2 
 

presiding officer requests a roll call. No councilor is excused from voting except on 

items that consider the councilor's official conduct, or involve the councilor's financial 

or personal interests (Charter IV.8). Although one cannot be compelled to vote (Robert's 

Rules), a councilor (a) who is present but fails to vote without having been excused 

under this rule, or (b) who, in violation of Rule 209, excused himself or herself from the 

meeting to avoid voting, may be disciplined (Charter IV.4; Va. Code § 2.2-3711). 

 

 



 

1 
 

  

 Current . . . 

  

MEMBERS – DUTIES AND PRIVILEGES 

201. Seating Arrangement – Members shall occupy the respective seats in the Council 

Chamber assigned as follows: The Mayor shall occupy the seat at the center desk; the 

Vice Mayor shall occupy the seat at the desk to the immediate left of the Mayor; the 

Immediate Past Mayor shall occupy the seat at the desk to the right of the Mayor; the 

remainder of Councilors shall be assigned desks chronologically by Ward Number, 

starting with Ward One to the far left of the Vice Mayor and the remaining Wards to the 

far right of the Immediate Past Mayor or Mayor if no Immediate/Former Past Mayor is 

serving on Council. The two remaining seats to the far left of the Mayor shall be 

occupied by the City Manager and City Attorney and the two remaining seats to the far 

right of the mayor shall be occupied by the City Clerk and the Assistant City Clerk. (See 

Minute Book No. 23, Page No. 348) (See Minute Book 24, Page No. 474 & 475 7/14/98.) Reconfiguration of Diagram 7/14/98.) 

(See Minute Book 26, Page 101, 7/3/00.) 

 

 

■■■■■■■■■■ 

 
  

 

       

Assistant 

City Clerk 

City Clerk  Immediate 

Former  

Mayor 

Mayor Vice 

Mayor 

 City 

Manager 

City 

Attorney 

The four wards not represented by the Mayor, Vice Mayor and Immediate Past Mayor (*if there is one) are seated in chronological order by Ward beginning 

to the far left of the Mayor with the first consecutively numbered ward.  

 

Proposed changes (redlined per then-clerk Kearney as of 3.13.2017) . . . 

 

CONDUCT OF MEETINGS— 

MEMBERS – DUTIES AND PRIVILEGESOF COUNCIL 

 

201. Seating Arrangement – Members shall occupy the respective seats in the Council 

Chamber assigned– Councilors are seated at the council chamber dais as follows: The. 

Mayor shall occupy the seat at the : center desk; the Vice Mayor shall occupy the seat at 

the desk to the ; vice mayor: immediate left of the Mayor; the mayor; immediate past 

mayor: immediateImmediate Past Mayor shall occupy the seat at the desk to the right of the 



 

2 
 

Mayor; themayor; remainder of Councilors shall be assigned desks 

chronologicallymembers: in increasing numerical order by Ward Numberward, starting 

with Ward One toat the far left of the Vice Mayormayor and the remaining Wards to the 

farimmediate right of the Immediate Past Mayor or Mayor if no Immediate/Former Past 

Mayor is serving on Council.city manager. The two remaining seats toare occupied, 

from the far left of the Mayor shall be occupied, by the City Managerclerk, the city 

attorney, and City Attorney and the two remaining seats to the far right of the mayor 

shall be occupied by the City Clerk and the Assistant City Clerk. (See Minute Book No. 23, Page 

No. 348) (See Minute Book 24, Page No. 474 & 475 7/14/98.) Reconfiguration of Diagram 7/14/98.) (See Minute Book 26, Page 

101, 7/3/00.)the city manager, respectively. 

 

■■■■■■■■■■ 
Sample Seating Chart 

  
  

 

       

 

Reserved    

 

Councilor  

(Ward 5) 

 

Councilor 

(Ward 3) 

 

Councilor 

(Ward 2) 

ImmediateAssistant 

City Clerk 

     Past 

   Mayor 

 (Ward 6)                                                                                

City 

Clerk 

 Immediate 

Former  

  

  Mayor 

(Ward 7)               

Mayor  

    Vice 

  

Mayor                                   

(Ward 

4) 

 

Councilor   

(Ward 1) 

 

     City 

Manager 

 

    City 

Attorney 

 

 City 

Clerk 

The four wards not represented by the Mayor, Vice Mayor and Immediate Past Mayor (*if there is one) are seated in chronological order by Ward beginning 

to the far left of the Mayor with the first consecutively numbered ward.  

     [podium] 

 

Proposed changes (clean) . . . 

 

CONDUCT OF MEETINGS— 

MEMBERS OF COUNCIL 
 

201. Seating – Councilors are seated at the council chamber dais as follows. Mayor: center; 

vice mayor: immediate left of mayor; immediate past mayor: immediate right of mayor; 

remainder of members: in increasing numerical order by ward, starting at the far left of 

the mayor and the immediate right of the city manager. The remaining seats are 

occupied, from the far left, by the clerk, the city attorney, and the city manager, 

respectively. 

 

Sample Seating Chart 

  
 

Reserved    

 

Councilor  

(Ward 5) 

 

Councilor 

(Ward 3) 

 

Councilor 

(Ward 2) 

Immediate 

     Past 

   Mayor 

 (Ward 6)                                                                                

  

  Mayor 

(Ward 7)               

 

    Vice 

  Mayor                                   

(Ward 4) 

 

Councilor   

(Ward 1) 

 

     City 

Manager 

 

    City 

Attorney 

 

 City 

Clerk 

 

     [podium] 



Current . . . 

 

202. Addressing the Chair – Every member speaking to a question or making a motion shall 

address the Chair as Mr. or Madame Mayor who shall thereupon pronounce the name of 

the members entitled to the floor. Members addressing Council shall confine themselves 

to the question under debate and avoid personalities. 

 

Proposed changes (redlined) . . . 

 

202. Addressing the Chair – Every member speaking to a question or making a motion shall 

address the Chair as Mr. or Madame Mayor who shall thereupon pronounce the name of 

the members entitled to the floor. Members addressing Council shall confine themselves 

to the question under debate and avoid personalities. 

Council – See Rule 406. 

 

 

Proposed changes (clean) . . . 

 

202. Addressing Council – See Rule 406. 

 



1 
 

Current . . . 

 

209. Excuse During Meeting – Any member desiring to be excused while Council is in session 

shall obtain such permission from the presiding officer.  

 

Proposed changes (redlined as of 7/1/18) . . . 

 

209. 

 

 

 

 

 

Excuse During Meeting – Any member desiring tocouncilor may be excused while Council 

is in session shall obtain suchduring a meeting, with permission fromof the presiding officer.  

 

Proposed changes (redlined per comments at 9/11/18 meeting) . . . 

 

Excuse During Meeting – Any councilor may be excused himself or herself during a 

meeting, with permission of the presiding officerexcept to avoid voting.  

 

 

Proposed (clean) . . .  

 

209. Any councilor may excuse himself or herself during a meeting, except to avoid voting. 

 



Current . . .  

 

406. Decorum – Council Members and Administration shall be addressed to Title or Mr., Mrs., or  

Miss during meetings. Any person making personal, impertinent, abusive or slanderous 

statements, or who shall incite disorderly conduct while addressing Council or present in 

Council Chamber shall be reprimanded by the Mayor and may be barred from further 

audience before Council. A second occurrence shall require removal from the meeting and 

subsequent meetings except by petition to Council which must be approved by majority vote. 

Any Council member making personal, impertinent, abusive or slanderous statements, or who 

shall incite disorderly conduct shall be reprimanded by the Mayor and may removed from the 

meeting, but only upon a majority vote of the members of Council, not including the member 

being so reprimanded. 

 

Proposed (redlined) . . . 

 

406. Decorum – Council MembersCouncilors and Administration shall beothers are addressed or 

referred to Title oras Mr., Mrs., or Miss during meetings., Ms., Madam, and/or by title.  For 

example, "Madam Mayor," "Vice Mayor Jones," "Councilor Smith," "Mr. Williams," or "the 

City Manager."  Any person makingwho makes personal, impertinent, abusive, or slanderous 

statements, or who shall inciteincites disorderly conduct while addressing Council or present 

in Council Chamber shall be reprimanded by the Mayor and may be barred from further 

audience before Council. A second occurrence shall require removal from the meeting and 

subsequent meetings except by petition to Council which must be approved by majority vote. 

Any Council member making personal, impertinent, abusive or slanderous statements, or who 

shall incite disorderly conduct shall becouncil chamber may be reprimanded by the 

Mayorpresiding officer, and may removed from the meeting, but only upon a majority vote of 

councilors present, excluding any councilor who is the memberssubject of Council, not 

including the member being so reprimandedmotion. 

 

 

 

 

Formatted: Heading 2, Tab stops:  0.18", Left
+  0.43", Left +  0.68", Left +  0.93", Left +
Not at  0.5"



Proposed (clean) . . . 

 

406. Decorum – Councilors and others are addressed or referred to as Mr., Mrs., Miss, Ms., 

Madam, and/or by title.  For example, "Madam Mayor," "Vice Mayor Jones," "Councilor 

Smith," "Mr. Williams," or "the City Manager." Any person who makes personal, 

impertinent, abusive, or slanderous statements, or incites disorderly conduct in the council 

chamber may be reprimanded by the presiding officer, and removed from the meeting upon a 

majority vote of councilors present, excluding any councilor who is the subject of the motion. 

 

 

Formatted: Normal, Left, Line spacing:  single,
Tab stops: Not at  0.5" +  1" +  1.5" +  2" + 
2.5" +  3"



 

 

REPORTS  
OF THE 

CITY CLERK 
 

 



 
REPORTS OF THE 

CITY COUNCIL 
• COMMITTEES 

• INDIVIDUAL REQUEST 
• ANY OTHER COUNCILOR 



CCR-1 



Code of Virginia
Title 58.1. Taxation
Chapter 35. Tangible Personal Property, Machinery and Tools and Merchants' Capital

§ 58.1-3506. Other classifications of tangible personal property
for taxation
A. The items of property set forth below are each declared to be a separate class of property and
shall constitute a classification for local taxation separate from other classifications of tangible
personal property provided in this chapter:

1. a. Boats or watercraft weighing five tons or more, not used solely for business purposes;

b. Boats or watercraft weighing less than five tons, not used solely for business purposes;

2. Aircraft having a maximum passenger seating capacity of no more than 50 that are owned and
operated by scheduled air carriers operating under certificates of public convenience and
necessity issued by the State Corporation Commission or the Civil Aeronautics Board;

3. Aircraft having a registered empty gross weight equal to or greater than 20,000 pounds that are
not owned or operated by scheduled air carriers recognized under federal law, but not including
any aircraft described in subdivision 4;

4. Aircraft that are (i) considered Warbirds, manufactured and intended for military use,
excluding those manufactured after 1954, and (ii) used only for (a) exhibit or display to the
general public and otherwise used for educational purposes (including such flights as are
necessary for testing, maintaining, or preparing such aircraft for safe operation), or (b) airshow
and flight demonstrations (including such flights necessary for testing, maintaining, or preparing
such aircraft for safe operation), shall constitute a new class of property. Such class of property
shall not include any aircraft used for commercial purposes, including transportation and other
services for a fee;

5. All other aircraft not included in subdivisions A 2, A 3, or A 4 and flight simulators;

6. Antique motor vehicles as defined in § 46.2-100 which may be used for general transportation
purposes as provided in subsection C of § 46.2-730;

7. Tangible personal property used in a research and development business;

8. Heavy construction machinery not used for business purposes, including land movers,
bulldozers, front-end loaders, graders, packers, power shovels, cranes, pile drivers, forest
harvesting and silvicultural activity equipment and ditch and other types of diggers;

9. Generating equipment purchased after December 31, 1974, for the purpose of changing the
energy source of a manufacturing plant from oil or natural gas to coal, wood, wood bark, wood
residue, or any other alternative energy source for use in manufacturing and any cogeneration
equipment purchased to achieve more efficient use of any energy source. Such generating
equipment and cogeneration equipment shall include, without limitation, such equipment
purchased by firms engaged in the business of generating electricity or steam, or both;

10. Vehicles without motive power, used or designed to be used as manufactured homes as
defined in § 36-85.3;

1 10/4/2018

/vacode/46.2-100/
/vacode/46.2-730/
/vacode/36-85.3/


  
11. Computer hardware used by businesses primarily engaged in providing data processing
services to other nonrelated or nonaffiliated businesses;
  
12. Privately owned pleasure boats and watercraft, 18 feet and over, used for recreational
purposes only;
  
13. Privately owned vans with a seating capacity of not less than seven nor more than 15 persons,
including the driver, used exclusively pursuant to a ridesharing arrangement as defined in § 46.2-
1400;
  
14. Motor vehicles specially equipped to provide transportation for physically handicapped
individuals;
  
15. Motor vehicles (i) owned by members of a volunteer emergency medical services agency or a
member of a volunteer fire department or (ii) leased by volunteer emergency medical services
personnel or a member of a volunteer fire department if the volunteer is obligated by the terms
of the lease to pay tangible personal property tax on the motor vehicle. One motor vehicle that is
owned by each volunteer member who meets the definition of "emergency medical services
personnel" in § 32.1-111.1 or volunteer fire department member, or leased by each volunteer
member who meets the definition of "emergency medical services personnel" in § 32.1-111.1 or
volunteer fire department member if the volunteer is obligated by the terms of the lease to pay
tangible personal property tax on the motor vehicle, may be specially classified under this
section, provided the volunteer regularly responds to emergency calls. The volunteer shall
furnish the commissioner of revenue, or other assessing officer, with a certification by the chief
of the volunteer emergency medical services agency or volunteer fire department, that the
volunteer is an individual who meets the definition of "emergency medical services personnel" in
§ 32.1-111.1 or a member of the volunteer fire department who regularly responds to calls or
regularly performs other duties for the emergency medical services agency or fire department,
and the motor vehicle owned or leased by the volunteer is identified. The certification shall be
submitted by January 31 of each year to the commissioner of revenue or other assessing officer;
however, the commissioner of revenue or other assessing officer shall be authorized, in his
discretion, and for good cause shown and without fault on the part of the volunteer, to accept a
certification after the January 31 deadline. In any county that prorates the assessment of tangible
personal property pursuant to § 58.1-3516, a replacement vehicle may be certified and classified
pursuant to this subsection when the vehicle certified as of the immediately prior January date is
transferred during the tax year;
  
16. Motor vehicles (i) owned by auxiliary members of a volunteer emergency medical services
agency or volunteer fire department or (ii) leased by auxiliary members of a volunteer emergency
medical services agency or volunteer fire department if the auxiliary member is obligated by the
terms of the lease to pay tangible personal property tax on the motor vehicle. One motor vehicle
that is regularly used by each auxiliary volunteer fire department or emergency medical services
agency member may be specially classified under this section. The auxiliary member shall furnish
the commissioner of revenue, or other assessing officer, with a certification by the chief of the
volunteer emergency medical services agency or volunteer fire department, that the volunteer is
an auxiliary member of the volunteer emergency medical services agency or fire department who
regularly performs duties for the emergency medical services agency or fire department, and the
motor vehicle is identified as regularly used for such purpose; however, if a volunteer meets the
definition of "emergency medical services personnel" in § 32.1-111.1 or volunteer fire

2 10/4/2018

/vacode/46.2-1400/
/vacode/46.2-1400/
/vacode/32.1-111.1/
/vacode/32.1-111.1/
/vacode/32.1-111.1/
/vacode/58.1-3516/
/vacode/32.1-111.1/


department member and an auxiliary member are members of the same household, that
household shall be allowed no more than two special classifications under this subdivision or
subdivision 15. The certification shall be submitted by January 31 of each year to the
commissioner of revenue or other assessing officer; however, the commissioner of revenue or
other assessing officer shall be authorized, in his discretion, and for good cause shown and
without fault on the part of the auxiliary member, to accept a certification after the January 31
deadline;
  
17. Motor vehicles owned by a nonprofit organization and used to deliver meals to homebound
persons or provide transportation to senior or handicapped citizens in the community to carry
out the purposes of the nonprofit organization;
  
18. Privately owned camping trailers as defined in § 46.2-100, and privately owned travel trailers
as defined in § 46.2-1500, which are used for recreational purposes only, and privately owned
trailers as defined in § 46.2-100, which are designed and used for the transportation of horses
except those trailers described in subdivision A 11 of § 58.1-3505;
  
19. One motor vehicle owned and regularly used by a veteran who has either lost, or lost the use
of, one or both legs, or an arm or a hand, or who is blind or who is permanently and totally
disabled as certified by the Department of Veterans Services. In order to qualify, the veteran shall
provide a written statement to the commissioner of revenue or other assessing officer from the
Department of Veterans Services that the veteran has been so designated or classified by the
Department of Veterans Services as to meet the requirements of this section, and that his
disability is service-connected. For purposes of this section, a person is blind if he meets the
provisions of § 46.2-100;
  
20. Motor vehicles (i) owned by persons who have been appointed to serve as auxiliary police
officers pursuant to Article 3 (§ 15.2-1731 et seq.) of Chapter 17 of Title 15.2 or (ii) leased by
persons who have been so appointed to serve as auxiliary police officers if the person is obligated
by the terms of the lease to pay tangible personal property tax on the motor vehicle. One motor
vehicle that is regularly used by each auxiliary police officer to respond to auxiliary police duties
may be specially classified under this section. In order to qualify for such classification, any
auxiliary police officer who applies for such classification shall identify the vehicle for which this
classification is sought, and shall furnish the commissioner of revenue or other assessing officer
with a certification from the governing body that has appointed such auxiliary police officer or
from the official who has appointed such auxiliary officers. That certification shall state that the
applicant is an auxiliary police officer who regularly uses a motor vehicle to respond to auxiliary
police duties, and it shall state that the vehicle for which the classification is sought is the
vehicle that is regularly used for that purpose. The certification shall be submitted by January 31
of each year to the commissioner of revenue or other assessing officer; however, the
commissioner of revenue or other assessing officer shall be authorized, in his discretion, and for
good cause shown and without fault on the part of the member, to accept a certification after the
January 31 deadline;
  
21. Until the first to occur of June 30, 2019, or the date that a special improvements tax is no
longer levied under § 15.2-4607 on property within a Multicounty Transportation Improvement
District created pursuant to Chapter 46 (§ 15.2-4600 et seq.) of Title 15.2, tangible personal
property that is used in manufacturing, testing, or operating satellites within a Multicounty
Transportation Improvement District, provided that such business personal property is put into
service within the District on or after July 1, 1999;

3 10/4/2018

/vacode/46.2-100/
/vacode/46.2-1500/
/vacode/46.2-100/
/vacode/58.1-3505/
/vacode/46.2-100/
/vacode/15.2-1731/
/vacode/15.2-4607/
/vacode/15.2-4600/


  
22. Motor vehicles which use clean special fuels as defined in § 46.2-749.3, which shall not
include any vehicle described in subdivision 38 or 40;
  
23. Wild or exotic animals kept for public exhibition in an indoor or outdoor facility that is
properly licensed by the federal government, the Commonwealth, or both, and that is properly
zoned for such use. "Wild animals" means any animals that are found in the wild, or in a wild
state, within the boundaries of the United States, its territories or possessions. "Exotic animals"
means any animals that are found in the wild, or in a wild state, and are native to a foreign
country;
  
24. Furniture, office, and maintenance equipment, exclusive of motor vehicles, that are owned
and used by an organization whose real property is assessed in accordance with § 58.1-3284.1
and that is used by that organization for the purpose of maintaining or using the open or
common space within a residential development;
  
25. Motor vehicles, trailers, and semitrailers with a gross vehicle weight of 10,000 pounds or
more used to transport property for hire by a motor carrier engaged in interstate commerce;
  
26. All tangible personal property employed in a trade or business other than that described in
subdivisions A 1 through A 20, except for subdivision A 18, of § 58.1-3503;
  
27. Programmable computer equipment and peripherals employed in a trade or business;
  
28. Privately owned pleasure boats and watercraft, motorized and under 18 feet, used for
recreational purposes only;
  
29. Privately owned pleasure boats and watercraft, nonmotorized and under 18 feet, used for
recreational purposes only;
  
30. Privately owned motor homes as defined in § 46.2-100 that are used for recreational purposes
only;
  
31. Tangible personal property used in the provision of Internet services. For purposes of this
subdivision, "Internet service" means a service, including an Internet Web-hosting service, that
enables users to access content, information, electronic mail, and the Internet as part of a
package of services sold to customers;
  
32. Motor vehicles (i) owned by persons who serve as auxiliary, reserve, volunteer, or special
deputy sheriffs or (ii) leased by persons who serve as auxiliary, reserve, volunteer, or special
deputy sheriffs if the person is obligated by the terms of the lease to pay tangible personal
property tax on the motor vehicle. For purposes of this subdivision, the term "auxiliary deputy
sheriff" means auxiliary, reserve, volunteer, or special deputy sheriff. One motor vehicle that is
regularly used by each auxiliary deputy sheriff to respond to auxiliary deputy sheriff duties may
be specially classified under this section. In order to qualify for such classification, any auxiliary
deputy sheriff who applies for such classification shall identify the vehicle for which this
classification is sought, and shall furnish the commissioner of revenue or other assessing officer
with a certification from the governing body that has appointed such auxiliary deputy sheriff or
from the official who has appointed such auxiliary deputy sheriff. That certification shall state
that the applicant is an auxiliary deputy sheriff who regularly uses a motor vehicle to respond to
such auxiliary duties, and it shall state that the vehicle for which the classification is sought is
the vehicle that is regularly used for that purpose. The certification shall be submitted by January

4 10/4/2018

/vacode/46.2-749.3/
/vacode/58.1-3284.1/
/vacode/58.1-3503/
/vacode/46.2-100/


31 of each year to the commissioner of revenue or other assessing officer; however, the
commissioner of revenue or other assessing officer shall be authorized, in his discretion, and for
good cause shown and without fault on the part of the member, to accept a certification after the
January 31 deadline;
  
33. Forest harvesting and silvicultural activity equipment;
  
34. Equipment used primarily for research, development, production, or provision of
biotechnology for the purpose of developing or providing products or processes for specific
commercial or public purposes, including medical, pharmaceutical, nutritional, and other health-
related purposes; agricultural purposes; or environmental purposes but not for human cloning
purposes as defined in § 32.1-162.21 or for products or purposes related to human embryo stem
cells. For purposes of this section, biotechnology equipment means equipment directly used in
activities associated with the science of living things;
  
35. Boats or watercraft weighing less than five tons, used for business purposes only;
  
36. Boats or watercraft weighing five tons or more, used for business purposes only;
  
37. Tangible personal property which is owned and operated by a service provider who is not a
CMRS provider and is not licensed by the FCC used to provide, for a fee, wireless broadband
Internet service. For purposes of this subdivision, "wireless broadband Internet service" means a
service that enables customers to access, through a wireless connection at an upload or download
bit rate of more than one megabyte per second, Internet service, as defined in § 58.1-602, as part
of a package of services sold to customers;
  
38. Low-speed vehicles as defined in § 46.2-100;
  
39. Motor vehicles with a seating capacity of not less than 30 persons, including the driver;
  
40. Motor vehicles powered solely by electricity;
  
41. Tangible personal property designed and used primarily for the purpose of manufacturing a
product from renewable energy as defined in § 56-576;
  
42. Motor vehicles leased by a county, city, town, or constitutional officer if the locality or
constitutional officer is obligated by the terms of the lease to pay tangible personal property tax
on the motor vehicle;
  
43. Computer equipment and peripherals used in a data center. For purposes of this subdivision,
"data center" means a facility whose primary services are the storage, management, and
processing of digital data and is used to house (i) computer and network systems, including
associated components such as servers, network equipment and appliances, telecommunications,
and data storage systems; (ii) systems for monitoring and managing infrastructure performance;
(iii) equipment used for the transformation, transmission, distribution, or management of at
least one megawatt of capacity of electrical power and cooling, including substations,
uninterruptible power supply systems, all electrical plant equipment, and associated air
handlers; (iv) Internet-related equipment and services; (v) data communications connections;
(vi) environmental controls; (vii) fire protection systems; and (viii) security systems and services;
  
44. Motor vehicles (i) owned by persons who serve as uniformed members of the Virginia Defense
Force pursuant to Article 4.2 (§ 44-54.4 et seq.) of Chapter 1 of Title 44 or (ii) leased by persons

5 10/4/2018

/vacode/32.1-162.21/
/vacode/58.1-602/
/vacode/46.2-100/
/vacode/56-576/
/vacode/44-54.4/


who serve as uniformed members of the Virginia Defense Force pursuant to Article 4.2 (§ 44-54.4
et seq.) of Chapter 1 of Title 44 if the person is obligated by the terms of the lease to pay tangible
personal property tax on the motor vehicle. One motor vehicle that is regularly used by a
uniformed member of the Virginia Defense Force to respond to his official duties may be
specially classified under this section. In order to qualify for such classification, any person who
applies for such classification shall identify the vehicle for which the classification is sought and
shall furnish to the commissioner of the revenue or other assessing officer a certification from
the Adjutant General of the Department of Military Affairs under § 44-11. That certification shall
state that (a) the applicant is a uniformed member of the Virginia Defense Force who regularly
uses a motor vehicle to respond to his official duties, and (b) the vehicle for which the
classification is sought is the vehicle that is regularly used for that purpose. The certification
shall be submitted by January 31 of each year to the commissioner of the revenue or other
assessing officer; however, the commissioner of revenue or other assessing officer shall be
authorized, in his discretion, and for good cause shown and without fault on the part of the
member, to accept a certification after the January 31 deadline;
  
45. If a locality has adopted an ordinance pursuant to subsection D of § 58.1-3703, tangible
personal property of a business that qualifies under such ordinance for the first two tax years in
which the business is subject to tax upon its personal property pursuant to this chapter. If a
locality has not adopted such ordinance, this classification shall apply to the tangible personal
property for such first two tax years of a business that otherwise meets the requirements of
subsection D of § 58.1-3703;
  
46. Miscellaneous and incidental tangible personal property employed in a trade or business that
is not classified as machinery and tools pursuant to Article 2 (§ 58.1-3507 et seq.), merchants'
capital pursuant to Article 3 (§ 58.1-3509 et seq.), or short-term rental property pursuant to
Article 3.1 (§ 58.1-3510.4 et seq.), and has an original cost of less than $500. A county, city, or
town shall allow a taxpayer to provide an aggregate estimate of the total cost of all such property
owned by the taxpayer that qualifies under this subdivision, in lieu of a specific, itemized list;
and
  
47. Commercial fishing vessels and property permanently attached to such vessels.
  
B. The governing body of any county, city or town may levy a tax on the property enumerated in
subsection A at different rates from the tax levied on other tangible personal property. The rates
of tax and the rates of assessment shall (i) for purposes of subdivisions A 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 8, 11
through 20, 22 through 24, and 26 through 47, not exceed that applicable to the general class of
tangible personal property, (ii) for purposes of subdivisions A 7, 9, 21, and 25, not exceed that
applicable to machinery and tools, and (iii) for purposes of subdivision A 10, equal that
applicable to real property. If an item of personal property is included in multiple classifications
under subsection A, then the rate of tax shall be the lowest rate assigned to such classifications.
  
C. Notwithstanding any other provision of this section, for any qualifying vehicle, as such term is
defined in § 58.1-3523, (i) included in any separate class of property in subsection A and (ii)
assessed for tangible personal property taxes by a county, city, or town receiving a payment from
the Commonwealth under Chapter 35.1 (§ 58.1-3523 et seq.) for providing tangible personal
property tax relief, the county, city, or town may levy the tangible personal property tax on such
qualifying vehicle at a rate not to exceed the rates of tax and rates of assessment required under
such chapter.
  

6 10/4/2018

/vacode/44-54.4/
/vacode/44-11/
/vacode/58.1-3703/
/vacode/58.1-3703/
/vacode/58.1-3507/
/vacode/58.1-3509/
/vacode/58.1-3510.4/
/vacode/58.1-3523/
/vacode/58.1-3523/


Code 1950, §§ 58-829.2:1, 58-829.3, 58-829.5 to 58-829.9, 58-831.01; 1960, c. 418; 1970, c. 655;
1976, c. 567; 1978, c. 155; 1979, cc. 351, 576; 1980, c. 412; 1981, cc. 236, 445; 1982, c. 633; 1984,
c. 675; 1985, c. 220; 1986, c. 195; 1988, c. 822; 1989, cc. 80, 694; 1990, cc. 677, 693; 1991, cc. 247,
330, 478; 1992, cc. 642, 680; 1993, c. 100; 1994, cc. 171, 221, 266, 631;1995, c. 142;1996, cc. 537,
603, 605;1997, cc. 244, 250, 433, 457;1999, cc. 289, 358;2000, cc. 409, 413, 441, 442, 604;2001, cc.
41, 447;2002, cc. 6, 63, 148, 337;2003, cc. 657, 670;2004, cc. 4, 556, 591;2004, Sp. Sess. I, c. 1;
2005, cc. 271, 325, 357;2006, cc. 200, 231, 400;2007, cc. 88, 322, 609;2008, cc. 26, 94, 143;2009,
cc. 40, 44;2010, cc. 264, 849;2012, cc. 97, 288;2013, cc. 39, 271, 287, 393, 652;2014, cc. 50, 409;
2015, cc. 487, 502, 503, 593, 615;2016, c. 483;2017, cc. 116, 447;2018, cc. 28, 292.
  
The chapters of the acts of assembly referenced in the historical citation at the end of this section
may not constitute a comprehensive list of such chapters and may exclude chapters whose
provisions have expired.
  

7 10/4/2018

http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?941+ful+CHAP0171
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?941+ful+CHAP0221
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?941+ful+CHAP0266
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?941+ful+CHAP0631
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?941+ful+CHAP0631
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?951+ful+CHAP0142
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?951+ful+CHAP0142
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?961+ful+CHAP0537
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?961+ful+CHAP0603
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?961+ful+CHAP0605
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?961+ful+CHAP0605
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?971+ful+CHAP0244
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?971+ful+CHAP0250
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?971+ful+CHAP0433
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?971+ful+CHAP0457
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?971+ful+CHAP0457
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?991+ful+CHAP0289
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?991+ful+CHAP0358
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?991+ful+CHAP0358
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?001+ful+CHAP0409
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?001+ful+CHAP0413
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?001+ful+CHAP0441
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?001+ful+CHAP0442
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?001+ful+CHAP0604
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?001+ful+CHAP0604
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?011+ful+CHAP0041
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?011+ful+CHAP0447
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?011+ful+CHAP0447
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?021+ful+CHAP0006
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?021+ful+CHAP0063
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?021+ful+CHAP0148
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?021+ful+CHAP0337
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?021+ful+CHAP0337
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?031+ful+CHAP0657
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?031+ful+CHAP0670
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?031+ful+CHAP0670
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?041+ful+CHAP0004
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?041+ful+CHAP0556
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?041+ful+CHAP0591
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?041+ful+CHAP0591
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?042+ful+CHAP0001
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?042+ful+CHAP0001
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?051+ful+CHAP0271
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?051+ful+CHAP0325
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?051+ful+CHAP0357
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?051+ful+CHAP0357
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?061+ful+CHAP0200
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?061+ful+CHAP0231
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?061+ful+CHAP0400
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?061+ful+CHAP0400
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?071+ful+CHAP0088
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?071+ful+CHAP0322
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?071+ful+CHAP0609
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?071+ful+CHAP0609
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?081+ful+CHAP0026
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?081+ful+CHAP0094
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?081+ful+CHAP0143
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?081+ful+CHAP0143
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?091+ful+CHAP0040
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?091+ful+CHAP0044
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?091+ful+CHAP0044
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?101+ful+CHAP0264
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?101+ful+CHAP0849
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?101+ful+CHAP0849
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?121+ful+CHAP0097
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?121+ful+CHAP0288
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?121+ful+CHAP0288
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?131+ful+CHAP0039
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?131+ful+CHAP0271
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?131+ful+CHAP0287
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?131+ful+CHAP0393
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?131+ful+CHAP0652
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?131+ful+CHAP0652
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?141+ful+CHAP0050
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?141+ful+CHAP0409
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?141+ful+CHAP0409
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?151+ful+CHAP0487
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?151+ful+CHAP0502
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?151+ful+CHAP0503
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?151+ful+CHAP0593
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?151+ful+CHAP0615
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?151+ful+CHAP0615
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?161+ful+CHAP0483
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?161+ful+CHAP0483
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?171+ful+CHAP0116
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?171+ful+CHAP0447
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?171+ful+CHAP0447
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?181+ful+CHAP0028
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?181+ful+CHAP0292


ORDINANCE 2018-XX 

An Ordinance amending and reenacting Article III, Tax on Public Service Corporations 
and Tangible Personal Property Other than Machinery and Tools of Chapter 34, Taxation, 

of the Code of the City of Hopewell. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HOPEWELL that Article III, Tax 
on Public Service Corporations and Tangible Personal Property Other than Machinery and Tools 
of Chapter 34, Taxation, of the Code of the City of Hopewell is amended and reenacted as 
follows: 

CHAPTER 34 – TAXATION 

ARTICLE III. TAX ON PUBLIC SERVICE CORPORATIONS AND TANGIBLE 
PERSONAL PROPERTY OTHER THAN MACHINERY AND TOOLS 

Sec. 34-47. - Qualification for special tax rate of motor vehicle owned or leased by disabled 
veteran.  

(a) Pursuant to Code of Virginia, § 58.1-3506(A)(19), one motor vehicle owned by a 
disabled veteran, or leased by such veteran, if obligated by terms of such lease to pay 
tangible personal property tax, which is regularly used by such veteran, is hereby defined 
as a separate item of taxation and shall constitute a classification separate from other 
classifications of tangible personal property.  

(b) By January 31 of each year, each disabled veteran shall provide the commissioner of the 
revenue with a certification of total disability in accordance with Code of Virginia, § 
58.1-3506, and a personal certification that he regularly used the qualifying motor vehicle 
during the previous calendar year. The certification must include the vehicle 
identification of the motor vehicle for which the separate tangible personal property 
classification is sought.  

State law references: Authority for above section, Code of Virginia, §58.1-3506. 

In accordance with Section 7, Effective date of ordinances and resolution; emergency measures, 
of Chapter 4 of the City Charter, this ordinance shall become effective after thirty (30) days from 
the date of its adoption by the City Council.  In all other respects said Code of the City of 
Hopewell shall remain unchanged and be in full force and effect. 



ADJOURN 




